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Chairman’s Statemen®
FEIRE




The year ended 31st March 2009 (the “Year”) has been another
fruitful year for the Group and | am delighted to announce that,
in recognition of the Group’s encouraging performance and the
continuous support of shareholders, the Board of Directors has
proposed a dividend payment for a third consecutive year.

Heavy marine transportation continued to be the core revenue
and cash-flow generator of the Group. During the Year, the
Group’s semi-submersible vessel, m/v Asian Atlas acted
in sizeable enterprises’ cross-nation infrastructure projects
and offshore projects of heavy industries and she earned
remarkable track record for potential clients’ reference. m/v
Asian Atlas traveled around the world including Asia, the Middle
East and western Africa during the Year. The utilisation rate
remained stable compared with last year. However, she could
not work to her full capacity mainly due to a surge in oil and
material prices globally in the first half year and overall cautious
sentiment amid worldwide financial instability. Nevertheless,
drastic lowering in fuel prices after the outbreak of the financial
tsunami boosted shippers’ incentive to press forward with
backlog shipments again.

We are confident that the demand for semi-submersible
transport capacity will remain keen. The relocation of offshore
oil drilling units and supporting facilities is still robust as a result
of huge global demand. With fewer than 20 semi-submersible
vessels worldwide of comparable capacity of m/v Asian Atlas,
the Group is enjoying a strong competitive edge. In order to
grasp the burgeoning opportunities, it is the Group’s strategy to
expand its semi-submersible fleet to enhance routing flexibility
and efficiency, as well as operating scale and profitability. The
Group is actively exploring and continuously studying all areas,
including but not limited to geographic flexibility, sustainability,
stability and peripheral support, for the optimal execution plan
to help it achieve its goals.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EREW|E

Business activities in the Group’s other operating segments,
construction projects and machinery trading, were strategically
restrained during the Year. This strategic move proved to be
successful in sheltering the Group from committing to loss-
making projects amid the acute rise in the price of construction
materials. It also helped to conserve the Group’s financial and
construction resources during the Year in preparation for large-
scale public and private projects to be launched in Hong Kong.

Looking forward to 2009 and 2010, the 10 major infrastructure
plans announced by the Hong Kong government, including
a new cruise terminal, Kai Tak Development Plan, MTR
Corporation Shatin to Central Link, Hong Kong - Zhuhai
— Macao Bridge and numerous small-scale projects, are
expected to rejuvenate the construction market. Having
a notable track record in land and marine piling projects,
such as Central-Wanchai Reclamation, Ma On Shan Rail
Extension, West Rail and Lok Ma Chau Spur Line, the Group is
determined to build on its expertise to tender for new projects
in the forthcoming years. Nonetheless, the management will
stay very cautious in managing the risks involved with potential
construction projects in order not to undermine the Group’s
financial capability.

Looking ahead, we expect that the forthcoming year will be
a year of industrious cultivation, as the Group continues to
move forward to achieve medium to long-term growth and
expansion.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank all our customers
for their continue support, our business partners, suppliers
and contractors for working hard alongside us, and our
shareholders for their continuing confidence in our Group. |
would also like to express my deepest appreciation to all staff
and our Board of Directors for their effort and dedication to the
Group.

Lau Chun Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21st July 2009
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31st March 2009
(the “Year”) increased slightly by 1% from the year ended 31st
March 2008 (the “Previous Year”) to HK$112.6 million, which
was solely contributed by the heavy marine transportation
division. Stagnant construction operation undermined the
Group’s performance. Operating profit for the Year fell by 59%
compared with the Previous Year to HK$9.9 million. Gross
profit margin increased by 6%, from 23% to 29%.

The Board of Directors recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HKO.1 cent per share for the Year, subject to
shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting.

Business activities in construction projects and machinery
trading were strategically restrained to preserve our financial
and construction resources in anticipation of various major
government infrastructure projects. The launch of these
projects has been speeded up to combat the impact of
the economic downturn brought on by the credit crisis.
Consequently, only a small selected amount of non-essential
construction machinery had been sold during the Year and
thus, other income of HK$2.9 million was recorded, a reduction
of HK$18.2 million from the Previous Year. As a result of the
Group’s conservative strategy, operating profit and profit after
tax for the Year decreased to HK$9.9 million and HK$14.1
million respectively. Nonetheless, the strategy also successfully
sheltered the Group from committing to loss-making projects
and enhanced its construction capacity at the time of high
paramount resource prices and erratic market conditions.

During the Year, security deposits in an amount of US$4.5
million (equivalent to HK$35.1 million), plus interest, had been
recovered from the legal case on the arrest of the Group’s
semi-submersible vessel, m/v Asian Atlas. Thus, the Group
lessened its reliance on external financing. A reduction of
HK$1.4 million or 25% in finance costs for the Year was
reported.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Looking ahead, the Group’s business model with diversified
income streams will benefit from the worldwide expansionary
fiscal policy and lowering commodity prices. Backed by
a steady cash flow from the heavy marine transportation
operation and a reserve of deployable necessary facilities,
we are financially viable to take on highly capital-intensive
engineering and construction projects both in the local and
overseas markets.

Further analysis on the performance of various business
segments is set out in the following sections.

Heavy Marine Transportation

Heavy marine transportation was the Group’s sole revenue
contributor during the Year with a turnover of HK$112.6
million, an increase of 10% from the Previous Year. Operating
profit for the Year rose by 17% to HK$38.6 million, while profit
margin improved by 2% to 34%, mainly due to a drop in fuel
prices in the third quarter of the Year after they peaked. The
Group’s semi-submersible vessel, m/v Asian Atlas, achieved an
utilisation rate of approximately 48% in the Year compared with
45% in the Previous Year. Albeit weak market sentiment after
the credit crisis, the Group was able to maintain the utilisation
rate, owing to an unprecedented assignment undertook by
our heavy marine transportation division. In this assignment,
m/v Asian Atlas transported a prominent South Korean
conglomerate’s offshore facilities used in an oil exploration
project. It was our largest assignment so far, in terms of freight
income.

The Group envisions that the heavy marine transportation
operation will benefit from backlog shipments as fuel prices
began to decrease towards the end of the Year. Meanwhile,
the Group is looking for opportunities arising from drastic price
adjustments in the shipping market to acquire additional semi-
submersible vessel(s) in order to strengthen its role in the
industry by enhancing routing flexibility and efficiency, as well
as operating scale and profitability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

Construction Projects and Machinery Trading

The Group’s construction operation did not record any revenue
for the Year. The private real estate sector in Hong Kong and
Macau had enjoyed a positive outlook since the third quarter of
the Previous Year, but it was short-lived and severely hampered
by the credit crisis. The Group actively participated in tendering
for a number of major private development projects during
the Year, but no projects had been concluded due to our
conservative, no loss-making pricing policy. The recent radical
market volatility proved our conservation strategy correct in
preserving the Group’s financial resources and construction
capacity. The construction projects division recorded an
operating loss of HK$16.0 million for the Year, as a result of
depreciation and maintenance costs of construction machinery
and fixed overheads.

The Group has on hand a well-maintained reserve of
construction plants and equipment ready for deployment
to its projects when the opportunity arises. It is also in an
advantageous position to bid for major public and private
projects such as a new cruise terminal, Kai Tak Development
Plan, MTR Corporation Shatin to Central Link and Hong Kong-
Zhuhai-Macao Bridge. Our construction business though
currently is not working on any project, we are optimistic with
the outlook in the construction market.

Liquidity, Financial Resources, Capital Structure and Gearing

As of 31st March 2009, the Group had cash and bank
balances of HK$90.0 million (2008: HK$52.6 million) and total
borrowings of HK$100.3 million (2008: HK$110.1 million).
Current portion of long-term borrowings, short-term borrowings
and amounts due to directors as of 31st March 2009 amounted
to HK$88.0 million (2008: HK$100.7 million). The Group’s
gearing ratio, calculated by dividing net borrowings by total
equity, was 5% at the end of the Year (2008: 32%). The
improvement in gearing was mainly attributable to operating
cash flow from the heavy marine transportation business,
proceeds from the disposal of plant and equipment, and the
collection of security deposits from the legal case on arrest of
m/v Asian Atlas.

Interest on the Group’s borrowings was mainly on a floating
rate basis.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Operations of the Group are mainly conducted in the Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”) and United States dollar (“‘US$”) and
its revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities and borrowings are
principally denominated in HK$ and US$, which do not pose
significant foreign currency risk at present.

Charges on Assets

The net book value of machinery and equipment held under
finance leases and pledged for long-term bank loans amounted
to HK$29.8 million (2008: HK$17.5 million) and HK$5.6 million
(2008: HK$1.4 million) respectively. Certain banking facilities
are secured by bank deposits of HK$65.2 million (2008:
HK$39.1 million).

Employees and Remuneration Policies

The Group had about 41 staff members (excluding directors)
as of 31st March 2009 and provides competitive remuneration
packages to employees which commensurate with individual
job nature and performance.

Litigation and Contingent Liabilities

On 11th April 2007, an action was lodged against a subsidiary
of the Company, as owner of the vessel m/v Asian Atlas,
to claim for damages, indemnity or contribution against the
liability, loss, damage or expenses suffered by a launchway-
owner (the “Plaintiff”). As a result of this claim, m/v Asian Atlas
was arrested and the Group had placed a deposit of US$4.5
million (equivalent to approximately HK$35.1 million) with the
High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(“HKSAR”) for its release. On 31st July 2008, the Court of
Appeal of the HKSAR dismissed the Plaintiff’s application for
appeal to the Court of Final Appeal and the abovementioned
US$4.5 million deposit together with the interest earned were
released to the Group on 16th December 2008.

At 31st March 2009, the Group and the Company had no
significant contingent liability in respect of litigations arising
in the normal course of its business. These litigations include
both claims against the Group and counterclaims made by
defendants of actions initiated by the Group. The Directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the ultimate liability under
these proceedings, if any, would not have a material impact on
the financial position of the Group and the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

ERERRE

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to the Company’s healthy development and to
enhance the interests of shareholders. During the financial year
ended 31st March 2009 (the “Year”), the Company remained
devoted to the formulating and maintaining of corporate
governance practices that are appropriate to the Company
to assert transparency, accountability and effective internal
control.

The Company has adopted the Code Provisions (“CG Code(s)”)
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as its own code
and has complied with the CG Codes throughout the Year
except there is no written terms on division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, which
is a deviation from Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Codes, as
more particularly described in the relevant section below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the control and leadership of the
Company and its duties include the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, business strategies, internal control
systems, material transactions, appointment of directors and
other significant operational, financial and legal compliance
matters. The Board delegates the authority to manage the daily
affairs of the Group to the Chief Executive Officer and senior
management.

The proceedings of the Board follow all relevant CG Codes.
The Board meets regularly for at least four times a year. All
Directors have full and timely access to relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary
with a view to ensuring the board procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations are followed. Each Director is able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
by making request to the Company Secretary, to assist in
discharging his duties.
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Corporate Governance Report

Composition

The composition of the Board is as follow:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lau Chun Ming — Chairman

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok — Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Lau Chun Ka

Ms. Leung Lai So

Mr. Hsu Kam Yee, Simon

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong — Company Secretary

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Chiu Kam Kun, Eric

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen — Chairman of Remuneration
Committee and member of
Audit Committee

Professor Wong — Member of Audit Committee

Sue Cheun, Roderick

Mr. Chan Wai Dune

and Remuneration Committee

— Chairman of Audit Committee
and member of Remuneration
Committee

The composition of the Board reflects a diverse yet balanced
set of skills and experience which is essential for effective
leadership of the Company. All the Board members possess
strong professional expertise, extensive experience in
corporate management as well as sharp commercial acumen.
Biographic details of Directors, including relationships among
members of the Board, are disclosed in the “Biographical
Details of Directors” section of the Report of the Directors.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual written confirmation of
independence pursuant to the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

ERERRE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
are held by different persons for purpose of maintaining
independence and a more balanced basis for judgments
and decisions. The Chairman is mainly responsible for the
leadership of the Board of Directors in formulating corporate
policies and business strategies and oversight of significant
compliance matters. The Chief Executive Officers focus on
implementing policies and strategies approved by the Board
and managing the Company’s businesses. There is no written
terms on division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer, which is a deviation from Code
Provision A.2.1 of the CG Codes which stipulates that the
division of responsibilities should be clearly established and
set out in writing. The Board considers that the responsibilities
of the two positions are fundamentally distinct and therefore
written terms of division are not necessary.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The procedures for the appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are laid down in the Company’s bye-laws. All the
Directors are appointed for a specific term and are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The
Company currently does not have a nomination committee
and the Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing its
composition, monitoring the appointment and independence,
where applicable, of Directors, and identifying suitable
and qualified individuals to become board members where
necessary.

Remuneration of Directors

Non-executive Directors are paid fees generally in line
with market practice and taking into consideration the
responsibilities and time spent by Non-executive Directors on
the Company’s affairs. The remuneration of Executive Directors
is determined by the chairman of the Board in consultation with
the Remuneration Committee after taking into consideration
market trends and responsibilities and performance of the
individual with a view to provide attractive reward to and retain
high performing individuals.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year
and additional meetings are convened as and when required.
During the Year, four regular Board meetings were held by the
Company and the attendance record of the Directors is as

EERERRE

EEREH—FEOEMBEFOR LR
ERSHEBMEMEE  NAEE AL
ARBTNAEHESERN MES
R T -

below.
Meetings Attended/Meetings Held
BEHEZER CBTZER
Audit Remuneration
Directors Board Committee Committee
BE g EREES FMEES
Lau Chun Ming 2R A 4/4 N/A N/A
i A A3
Lau Chun Kwok 2 B 4/4 N/A N/A
3 A N3 A
Lau Chun Ka 2PREK 4/4 N/A N/A
TEA A
Leung Lai So RE#H 4/4 N/A N/A
i A NiEA
Hsu Kam Yee, Simon iRl 4/4 N/A N/A
3 A N3 A
Chan Sun Kwong PR = 4/4 N/A N/A
TEA TEA
Chiu Kam Kun, Eric KR 3/4 N/A N/A
i A NiE A
Lee Peng Fei, Allen = 4/4 2/2 1/1
Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick T2 4/4 2/2 1/1
Chan Wai Dune R 4 ity 2/4 1/2 1/1

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least fourteen days before the meetings and reasonable notice
is generally given for other meetings. Meeting agenda and
board papers together with other relevant materials are sent to
all Directors at least three days (or such other period as agreed)
before each meeting. The Company Secretary is responsible
to take minutes of all Board and Board committee meetings.
Draft and final meeting minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comment and records respectively within reasonable time after
the meeting is held.

ETHEEEERBENGHRBTAED
TOXRFHTERES MEAGBERL—
BRAERHEAZELEE SREERE

CERNMTEREMERENNERE
FBITNEL =R (LERBZEMBAR)
FETEREF AANERERMAE
ZeNEEREETR TR &
BhkEREBFLEHTETERES U
EERBTRNAERHADBREEER
R NG e

“ZTRFEFH | ANNUAL REPORT 2009

15



16

Corporate Governance Report

ERERRE

Guidelines are in place which stipulate that any material
matter which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial
shareholder or Director will be dealt with at a duly convened
Board meeting. The Company’s bye-laws also contain
provisions stipulating the procedures according to which
any material matters involving conflict of interests are to be
approved at Board meeting.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Chan Wai Dune,
who possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference
which lay down clearly its authority and duties, which include
the maintaining of an appropriate relationship with independent
auditors, review of financial information and monitoring the
financial reporting system and internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee has met two times during the Year and
the work performed included the following.

— reviewed the Company’s annual report and results
announcement for the year ended 31st March 2008;

— reviewed the Company’s interim report and results
announcement for the period ended 30th September 2008;

- met with the Company’s independent auditors and
management to discuss issues arising from the audit;

— considered and advised the Board on matters in relation
to new accounting policies and standard, internal control
measures and risk management procedures; and

- reviewed the engagement, independence, remuneration
and effectiveness of the independent auditors on both

audit and non-audit services.

The Company’s audited financial statements for the Year have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors and is chaired by Dr.
Lee Peng Fei, Allen. Its primary objectives include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy
and packages of Executive Directors and ensuring that no
Director will be involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has held one meeting during the
Year to review the remuneration packages of the Directors to
ensure they are fair, reasonable and competitive with reference
to general market practice and the duties of the Directors.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as its own code regarding securities transactions by
Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries and employees
of the Group who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Company. All the Directors
have confirmed their compliance with the codes throughout the
Year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the Company’s financial statements in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. Furthermore, the Board is responsible
for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Company’s annual and interim reports,
other price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other statutory
requirements.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
of the Company is set out in the “Independent Auditors’
Report” forming part of this annual report.
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The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
there are no any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining a sound
and effective system of internal controls to safeguard the
interests of the Company’s shareholders and the Company’s
assets.

The Company’s internal control system includes a defined
management structure with limits of authority and is designed
to help the achievement of business objectives, safeguard
assets against unauthorised use, maintain proper accounting
records for both internal use and publication and ensure
compliance with relevant regulations. The system is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage, rather than
eliminate, risks of failure in operational systems.

The Board of Directors have continuously monitored and at
least annually reviewed the development and effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control system.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s
independent auditors in respect of services provided is as
follow.

Fees for audit services amounted to HK$868,000.

Fees for non-audit services amounted to HK$51,000.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of regular and open
communications with the Company’s shareholders and
encourages their active participation at general meetings.
The Chairman of the Board and Board Committees, the Chief
Executive Officer and senior management of the Company all
endeavour to make themselves available to answer questions
at the general meetings. The Company’s interim and annual
reports also serve as an important means of communication
from the Company and the Board to shareholders.

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding
a poll on resolutions at general meetings are contained in the
Company’s bye-laws. Details of such rights and procedures are
included in all circulars to shareholders and will be explained
during general meetings.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in foundation works, trading
of machinery and equipment and vessel chartering. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set forth in note 34 to
the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance by business segments
is set out in note 6 to the financial statements. All assets and
operations related to the construction and trading of machinery
and equipments businesses of the Group are located in Hong
Kong. The vessel chartering business is carried out worldwide
and cannot be allocated into any meaningful geographical
segments. Accordingly, geographical segment information is
not presented.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2009
are set forth in the consolidated income statement on page 35.

The directors proposed a final dividend of HKO.1 cent per
share to shareholders whose name appear on the register of
members on 8th September 2009. The register of members will
be closed from 1st September 2009 to 8th September 2009,
both days inclusive.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in plant and equipment of the Group
and the Company are set forth in note 15 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company and movement

during the year are set forth in note 21 to the financial
statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 22 to the financial
statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$28,000.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 104.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

There is no outstanding share options as at 31st March 2008
and 31st March 2009. No options were granted during the year
and up to the date of this report.

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of the
directors (including their spouse and children under 18 years
of age) had any interest in, or had been granted, or exercised,
any rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or debentures, if
applicable) of the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Mr. Lau Chun Ming

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok

Mr. Lau Chun Ka

Ms. Leung Lai So

Mr. Hsu Kam Yee, Simon

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong

Mr. Chiu Kam Kun, Eric '

Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen 2

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick 2
Mr. Chan Wai Dune ?

! Non-executive Director
2 Independent Non-executive Directors

In accordance with bye-laws 87 of the Company’s bye-laws,
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, Mr. Hsu Kam Yee, Simon, Mr. Chan Sun
Kwong and Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors
are independent.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Other than the transactions as disclosed in note 33 to the
financial statements, no contracts of significance in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party in which a director was materially
interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at 31st
March 2009 or at any time during the year then ended.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the interest and short positions of
Directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance),
as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, or as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or
as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies, are as follows:

(a) Directors’ interest in the Company:
Name of director Number of shares
Y] R EE
Mr. Lau Chun Ming Long position 1,700,000,000 shares (Note 1)
IR & £1,700,000,000% (Ff7E1)
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok Long position 225,000,000 shares (Note 2)
BIRBI e & £225,000,0008% (Fff#£2)
Mr. Lau Chun Ka Long position 225,000,000 shares (Note 3)
2K EHE £ £225,000,0008% (Ffi 7£3)
Ms. Leung Lai So Long position 1,700,000,000 shares (Note 1)
REHLL & £1,700,000,0008% (Ff#E1)
Mr. Chan Sun Kwong Long position 5,000,000 shares
REHEE K £5,000,0008%
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Approximate

percentage of

Name of director Number of shares shareholding Capacity
BEEHE RGEE REMATDL 55
Mr. Chiu Kam Kun, Eric Long position 680,000 shares 0.02% Beneficial owner
[EEipbtes K 2680,0008 EnBAA
Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen Long position 4,320,000 shares 0.14% Beneficial owner
FEREL 24,320,000 FalEA
Professor Wong Sue Long position 5,000,000 shares 0.16% Beneficial owner
Cheun, Roderick £ £5,000,0008% BaEA
T 2HE
(b) Directors’ interest in the associated corporations: (b) BEEREBEE R
Approximate
percentage of
Name of director Name of company Number of shares shareholding Capacity
EEpg TS RHG#A RESHEIM 55
Ms. Leung Lai So Actiease Assets Limited Long position 61 shares 100% Beneficiary of a
PBELL RE61% discretionary trust
EEEREA
Ms. Leung Lai So Silver Bright Holdings Limited Long position 10,000 shares 100% Beneficiary of a
2BELL ££10,0008% discretionary trust
PREREREA
Notes: K1z -

1. 1,700,000,000 shares were held by Actiease Assets Limited,
a company wholly-owned by Silver Bright Holdings Limited
which is indirectly owned by a discretionary trust of which
Ms. Leung Lai So is a beneficiary.

2. 225,000,000 shares were held by CKL Development
Limited, a corporation which is controlled by Mr. Lau Chun
Kwok.

3. 225,000,000 shares were held by Nice Fair Group Limited, a
corporation which is controlled by Mr. Lau Chun Ka.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

So far as the Directors are aware, the interest and short
positions of the persons, other than a director or chief
executive of the Company, in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance as
at the date of this report are as follows:

Name of substantial

shareholder Number of shares
TERFEE BB RO #E
Actiease Assets Limited Long position 1,700,000,000 shares

& #1,700,000,0008%

Silver Bright Holdings Limited  Long position 1,700,000,000 shares
££1,700,000,000%

ManageCorp Limited Long position 1,700,000,000 shares
&&1,700,000,0004%

Dao Heng Trustee (Jersey) Long position 1,700,000,000 shares

Limited as trustee of The £721,700,000,0000%
LCM 2002 Trust

CKL Development Limited Long position 225,000,000 shares
£8225,000,000/%

Nice Fair Group Limited Long position 225,000,000 shares
£8225,000,000/%

Ms.Tang Lin Ngor Long position 225,000,000 shares
EEg L+ & £225,000,000/%
Ms. Ip Fung Sheung Long position 225,000,000 shares
RRmLL & £225,000,000/%
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EREBA
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56.29% Trustee
ZEEA
7.45% Beneficial owner
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
Chairman and Executive Directors

Mr. LAU Chun Ming, aged 66, is an Executive Director, the
Chairman and founder of the Group. Mr. Lau is responsible for
the Group’s overall strategic planning, business development
and formulation of overall corporate policies. Mr. Lau has
been involved in trading and maintenance of machinery and
equipment, ship dismantling, repairing and trading since 1970.
Besides, he has been involved in foundation works since 1990.

He is a brother of Mr. Lau Chun Kwok and Mr. Lau Chun
Ka and the spouse of Ms. Leung Lai So, each an Executive
Director.

Executive Directors

Mr. LAU Chun Kwok, aged 57, is an Executive Director. He
is also the chief executive officer of the Group. He joined the
Group and has been involved in ship dismantling, repairing
and trading since 1970. He also has profound experience
in foundation related works for over 10 years. He has been
responsible for overall deployment of foundation construction
machinery and equipment, labour, resources and purchasing
activities of the Group since 1990. During the past decade, he
has involved intensively in the management of piling works of
various nature. He is a brother of Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Mr.
Lau Chun Ka.

Mr. LAU Chun Ka, aged 55, is an Executive Director. He
joined the Group in the early 1970s and has been involved in
ship dismantling, repairing and trading. He also has profound
experience in mechanical engineering and construction/
foundation equipment for over 20 years. Since he joined
the Group, he has been responsible for the maintenance of
machinery and equipment of the Group. During the last about
20 years, he has concentrated on the overall management
of maintenance and repair of construction machinery and
equipment. He is a brother of Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Mr. Lau

Chun Kwok.
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Ms. LEUNG Lai So, aged 62, is an Executive Director. She
joined the Group since 1970. She has extensive experience
in management for over 20 years. She was responsible for
administration and accounting of the Group from 1970 to
1990, and has been responsible for administration and human
resources since 1990. She holds a diploma in management
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. She is the
spouse of Mr. Lau Chun Ming, an Executive Director and the
Company’s Chairman.

Mr. HSU Kam Yee, Simon, aged 54, joined the Group in 2001
and is an Executive Director. He is responsible for the business
development, tendering and overall management of
construction projects of the Group. He has worked for publicly
listed construction and engineering companies in Hong
Kong for 27 years, involving in civil engineering and building
projects, specialising in foundation works of various nature.
He holds a bachelor degree of science in mathematics and
a bachelor degree of science in civil engineering from the
University of Saskatchewan in Canada and a master degree
in business administration from the University of East Asia in
the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC. He is a
Registered Professional Engineer in Hong Kong and a member
of the Institution of Civil Engineers in the UK and Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers. He was appointed by the Buildings
Department as a member of the Contractors Registration
Committee Panel for a period of two years commencing 31st
December 2004. Mr. Hsu is not related to any directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Mr. CHAN Sun Kwong, aged 42, joined the Group in 2002
and is an Executive Director. He is also the finance director
and company secretary of the Group. He is responsible
for advising on financial, accounting, treasury and banking
matters of the Group. He has over 20 years of experience
serving as management of public companies in different
industries including civil, electrical and mechanical engineering,
marine engineering and telecom and internet in Hong Kong
and overseas. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the UK, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators in the UK. Mr. Chan is not
related to any directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. CHIU Kam Kun, Eric, aged 50, is a Non-executive
Director. He joined the Group in 2000 and has been working for
major construction and engineering companies in Hong Kong
for over 28 years, involving in civil engineering and building
projects. He holds a higher diploma in civil engineering from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a master degree
of science in construction project management from the
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers, a member of the Institution of
Civil Engineers in the UK, the Institution of Engineers, Australia
and the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in the UK, and an
associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators. Mr. Chiu is
not related to any directors, senior management or substantial
or controlling shareholders of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen, CBE, BS, FHKIE, JP, aged 69, joined the
Company in 2003 and is an Independent Non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee. Dr. Lee holds an honorary
doctoral degree in engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and an honorary doctoral degree in laws from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Dr. Lee was a deputy
of Hong Kong SAR, the 9th and 10th National People’s
Congress, PRC and has taken an active role in public service.
He was formerly a member of the Hong Kong Legislative
Council from 1978 to 1997 and a senior member of the Hong
Kong Legislative Council from 1988 to 1991. Dr. Lee was
also a member of the Hong Kong Executive Council from
1985 to 1992. Dr. Lee is not related to any directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.
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Professor WONG Sue Cheun, Roderick, aged 64, joined
the Company in 2003 and is an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of both the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Professor Wong holds a bachelor
degree of arts from San Diego State College, the US and a
doctoral degree of philosophy from the University of Alberta,
Canada. He is a Fellow of the Royal Society of Canada and
Chevalier dans I’Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur
of France. Currently, he is the Vice-President (Research)/
Dean of Graduate Studies at the City University of Hong
Kong. Professor Wong is not related to any directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Mr. CHAN Wai Dune, aged 56, joined the Company in 2004
and is an Independent Non-executive Director, the chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. He has over 28 years of experience in the finance
sector, particularly in auditing and taxation areas. He is a
certified public accountant and is a fellow member of each
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the UK
and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He is currently a
member of CPPCC of Guangzhou Municipal Committee and a
member of the Executive Council of China Overseas Friendship
Association. He was a member of the Selection Committee
for the establishment of the First Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr. Chan is currently the
Managing Director of CCIF CPA Limited. Mr. Chan is also an
independent non-executive director of five Hong Kong listed
companies namely, Minmetals Resources Limited, Heng Xin
China Holdings Limited, Jinheng Automotive Safety Technology
Holdings Limited, Chaoyue Group Limited and Welling Holding
Limited. In the past year, he was an independent non-
executive director of each of Chuang’s China Investments
Limited, Chuang’s Consortium International Limited and Hunan
Nonferrous Metals Corporation Limited (retired on 28th August
2008, 28th August 2008 and 6th March 2009 respectively).
Mr. Chan is not related to any directors, senior management or
substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration

of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, approximately 100 per cent. and 41.00 per
cent. of the Group’s turnover was attributable to the five largest
customers and the largest customer respectively.

During the year, approximately 76.47 per cent. and 35.90 per
cent. of the Group’s purchases were attributable to the five
largest suppliers and the largest supplier respectively.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5 per
cent. of the Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in
the major suppliers or customers above at any time during the
year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following connected transactions were entered into by the
Group during the year, certain details of which are disclosed in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(a) Leasing of storage property

On 10th October 2007, Sam Woo Bore Pile Foundation
Limited as tenant and Cheer Crown Limited as landlord
entered into a tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement”)
for leasing of certain property for open storage purpose
for a term of 24 calendar months commencing from 1st
August 2007 to 31st July 2009 (both days inclusive) at
a monthly rental of HK$90,000. The annual rental and
aggregate rentals payable under the Tenancy Agreement
are HK$1,080,000 and HK$2,160,000 respectively. The
management fees, rates and government rent in respect of
the property, if any, shall be paid by the landlord.

Sam Woo Bore Pile Foundation Limited is a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company whereas Cheer Crown Limited
is wholly owned and controlled by Mr. Lau Chun Ming, a
director of the Company.
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(b) Leasing of premises

On 10th October 2007, Sam Woo Holdings Limited as
tenant and Long Ascent Development Limited, Healthy
World Investment Limited, Cheer Wealth International
Development Limited, Cheer Profit International Enterprise
Limited and East Ascent Enterprise Limited as landlords
entered into various tenancy agreements (“Tenancy
Agreements”) for leasing of certain premises for directors’
quarters for a term of 24 calendar months commencing
from 1st April 2007 to 31st March 2009 (both days
inclusive) at a monthly rental of HK$43,000, HK$43,000,
HK$66,000, HK$3,000 and HK$3,000 respectively. The
annual rental payable under the Tenancy Agreements are
HK$516,000, HK$516,000, HK$792,000, HK$36,000 and
HK$36,000 respectively and the aggregate rentals payable
under the Tenancy Agreements are HK$1,032,000,
HK$1,032,000, HK$1,584,000, HK$72,000 and
HK$72,000 respectively. The management fees, rates and
government rent in respect of the property, if any, shall be
paid by the landlord.

Long Ascent Development Limited, Healthy World Investment
Limited, Cheer Wealth International Development Limited,
Cheer Profit International Enterprise Limited and East
Ascent Enterprise Limited are companies beneficially
owned by certain directors of the Company, including Mr.
Lau Chun Ming, Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, Mr. Lau Chun Ka and
Ms. Leung Lai So.

The directors of the Company, including the independent
non-executive directors, considered that all of the above
transactions were in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group, on normal commercial terms and fair and
reasonable so far as the Company and its shareholders are
concerned.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules,
PricewaterhouseCoopers and Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited,
the independent auditors of the Company, have performed
certain agreed-upon procedures on the continuing connected
transactions as set out in notes (a) and (b) above and reported
that:

(@) the transactions have been approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company;
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(b) the transactions have been entered into in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the transactions;
and

(c) the amounts of the transactions have not exceeded the
relevant caps.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the law
of Bermuda or the Company’s bye-laws in respect of the
Company’s share capital.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during
the year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee, comprising three Independent Non-
executive Directors, has reviewed the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules based
on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers and Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Chun Ming

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21st July 2009
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Independent Auditors’ Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Sam Woo
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 35 to 41, which
comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as
at 31st March 2009, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31st March 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
BERKEGTMBBAR
HEGETAD

Hong Kong, 21st July 2009

BOP RITIE P A EUA B A IS R A
HERMBEEMNBRRE - TEEN
BFEURNZBEN W HE - 2R EER
MAFRERMERMBEHREFEERNER
RO R - FERT M % SRR A - XD
EREZARRENEEM AT H®E
BHRERAAREHOAIESE - URFHEENE
A2 EXIERE R EMAEBE AR
REXRER - BRINBREVEEZMERA
VEETREN S B RAER A
AR URFFEMBERRAEESH

EEREENAE  BEEMERSNERER
ERARMEZHREFNEREREHRE

o

=R

EERBEABA  REUBRRERER
BHMBHREENEEMAFERK] A
AR SEER_ZTAF=A=t+—H
MBBHRR - &k EEREBEZALFE
ZHMBEREREERE  YERREB(QR
RO BHEMREZ DRE

Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited
Certified Public Accountants
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Hong Kong, 21st July 2009
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Franklin Lau Shiu Wai, Director
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Consolidated Income Statement
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For the year ended 31st March 2009 H#EZE-—ZZNF=A=+—HIFE

2009 2008
—ETAFE  —FTT)F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7E FET TET
Revenue WA 5 112,610 111,873
Cost of sales $H 65 B AR 8 (80,157) (85,670)
Gross profit E 32,453 26,203
Other income H KA 7 2,939 21,183
Administrative expenses THEHR 8 (25,484) (23,441)
Operating profit 7 e 9,908 23,945
Finance income BB WA 9 2,511 1,620
Finance costs RN 9 (4,253) (5,672)
Profit before taxation B 753 A e Al 8,166 19,893
Taxation IR 10 5,944 2,079
Profit attributable to the equity KRB PR E,
holders of the Company A 14 14,110 21,972
Dividend fi% 8 11 3,020 3,926
Earnings per share G & A
- Basic —EHK 12 HKO0.467 cent  HKO0.728 cent
0.46738 1L 0.7287%
- Diluted — e 12 HK0.467 cent  HKO0.727 cent
0.46738 1l 0.7277 Al
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As at 31st March 2009 R=—ZEZENF=FA=+—H

2009 2008
—EBEEAFE ZTEN\F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
M =E FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Plant and equipment RN 15 202,495 196,983
Deferred taxation assets EIEFIEE = 24 256 161
202,751 197,144
Current assets REEE
Trade and retention receivables FEUER X KB INRE & 17 5,468 6,977
Deposits, prepayments and Ee  BRAEIEL
other receivables H {th & W 518 3,694 39,851
Inventories FE 18 14,887 18,721
Amounts due from customers B TIZES 4
for contract work EFERIE 19 9,765 9,765
Cash and bank balances BWERETET
Unrestricted 428 PR 20 24,790 13,459
Restricted A BR 20 65,204 39,112
Tax recoverable A] Uy [2] 7 18 1,046 1,744
124,854 129,629
Total assets EEH#E 327,605 326,773
EQUITY X
Capital and reserves BEAXREE
Share capital ez 21 30,200 30,200
Reserves {1 22 156,194 145,104
Proposed final dividend BEARARE 22 3,020 3,926
Total equity B 189,414 179,230
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities FERBEB
Long-term borrowings REIEE 23 12,263 9,375
Deferred taxation liabilities EEFIE B (& 24 15,599 21,498
27,862 30,873
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As at 31st March 2009 R=—ZFZEhF=FA=1+—H

Note
B 5

Current liabilities REaE

Trade and retention payables
Accruals and other payables

ERERERBRERE S 25
EEtERMEMEMNRE 26

Amounts due to related companies XN NETE ] 27
Amounts due to directors B EENRIE 27
Short-term borrowings fEHIE K 28
Current portion of REBEIHZS
long-term borrowings 23
Total liabilities EE8E
Total equity and liabilities ERREEAR
Net current assets REBEEFE

Total assets less current liabilities ZEAZABERABARS

Lau Chun Ming

2R BA
Director

EF

2009 2008
—BBhE —TTN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT T
11,112 11,378
11,030 4,395
158 158
14,375 12,659
64,764 82,301
8,890 5,779
110,329 116,670
138,191 147,543
327,605 326,773
14,525 12,959
217,276 210,108

Chan Sun Kwong

=%
Director

EZE
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As at 31st March 2009 R=—ZEZENF=FA=+—H

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Deferred taxation assets

Current assets
Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables
Amount due from a subsidiary
Cash and bank balances
Unrestricted
Restricted

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Other reserves
Proposed final dividend

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Accruals and other payables
Amounts due to related companies
Amounts due to directors

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

BE

FRBEE

KRB RRAIZIRE
EXEHBAEE

RBEE
Be  BAHRA
Ko E A & W R IR
R Ui Bt B ] SRR
Re MRITHET
5 IR )
B R

BEEHME

R
EXRf#E
(&N

H At 1
EEARAKRE

@A

&\
REBAE

&S & A I E A AN R IR

&1 B 3B R R IR
BNEFEHA

BEAR
EERAEAE
REBEEFE
EERBEBRRBRE

Lau Chun Ming
24z B3
Director

EF
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Note
Hf 5

16
24

21
22
22

27
27

2009 2008
—EENE “TI)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THR THT
117,567 117,567
114 71
... 117,681 ERRii0088
424 347
2,599 406
881 1,292
40,204 39,112
... 44,108 . Alpley
161,789 158,795
30,200 30,200
126,643 122,675
3,020 3,926
.....159,863 [ 1. 156,801
1,476 1,507
158 158
292 329
... 1,926 ERNE LEh
161,789 158,795
42,182 39,163
159,863 156,801

Chan Sun Kwong

(=5
Director

EZE



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GmEERSEHHRR

For the year ended 31st March 2009 ##E =TT NF=A=+—HILEFE

At 1st April 2007

Issue of shares upon exercise
of share options

Dividend paid

Profit for the year

At 31st March 2008
At 1st April 2008
Dividend paid

Profit for the year

At 31st March 2009

Share
premium
Share and merger  Retained

capital reserve  earnings Total

B 10 5= B R
BAx  EOHEEE  REBEERF st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
TERT TET TERT TET
RZZETLFMA—H 30,000 14,939 116,979 161,918

1T R IR R TR D

200 1,180 = 1,380
BIRE - - (6,040) (6,040)
REE R - = 21,972 21,972
RZZEENF=A=+—H 30,200 16,119 132,911 179,230
RZZEZENFMA—H 30,200 16,119 132,911 179,230
ERNERE - - (3,926) (3,926)
REE 5 - - 14,110 14,110
RZEENF=ZA=+—H 30,200 16,119 143,095 189,414
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERENE®MRK

For the year ended 31st March 2009 ##EZ=—ZETNF=A=+—HILEFE

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operations

Interest paid

Interest element of finance lease
payments

Hong Kong profits tax refund/(paid)

Net cash from/(used in) operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of plant
and equipment

Interest received

Net cash (used in)/from investing
activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Capital element of finance

lease payments
Drawdown of long-term bank loans
Repayment of long-term bank loans
Repayment of loan from a director
Drawdown of short-term bank loans
Repayment of short-term bank loans
Repayment of other loan
Proceeds from issue of shares
Dividend paid
Increase in restricted bank balances

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year
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Note

B &
RETHHESRE
Y Sy

(FTA) 2R &3 32(a)
BERF 8
BMEME N HF B

5

RE (B BBREH

R XS
BeFE

(FA)

REFHRERE

WEEREREM
e R B R EE M
P18 3R

EUFIE

REZH(MA) /EREFRE

MEZHRESRE

MEBEEN®
KEEBD
REREHARITER
EERBRITER
BE-—REEZEX
REEHRITER
EEEBRITER
{832 K A & 5K
BIRM ZABHR
B E

AR R AT A7

MELHARASFR

ReRBAELEEER
12 0 7% 58
FHNZRERAS
£E1EH

FERZBEERES
£EIER 20

2009 2008
—8TAE —TT)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
67,974 (7,207)
(3,529) (4,567)

(724) (1,105)

648 (5,967)

64,369 (18,846)
(6,112) (264)

1,419 32,899

2,511 1,620
I 2182 34,255
(6,994) (5,635)

5,000 -

(1,307) (441)

- (11,621)

- 18,066

(16,598) -

- (7,800)

- 1,380

(3,926) (6,040)
(26,092) (711)
o (49,917)  (12,802)
12,270 2,607
(32,452) (35,059)
(20,182) (32,452)




Notes to the Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sam Woo Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in foundation works, trading of machinery and
equipment for foundation works and vessel chartering.
The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda and listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Company’s
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton II, Bermuda. The principal place of business
in Hong Kong is Units 1310-13, 113 Argyle Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

These financial statements have been approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 21st July 2009.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). These financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements, are disclosed
in note 4 below.
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R T o AR R S Rt A 7 70
Clarendon House, 2 ChurchStreet,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda ° AN 2 &
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21 ImEEE

RRRZHMBEBRRTIILREE
SEMAg ([FESFMA
DBEMBERBY B REE
AI(T&BMBRE LR ) M #w
B o RP B IR TIRIBE LK
RER LRS-

RAETAETRBYBREEND
MBEHRRFBEERETHERS
FHEE  ANEERETFTER
ERARR G RFEBRERIT
EEHE - P K& EH R
BRZEBE P RBPBER
REREARER LG ZEE
KT XK a4 WE -

“ZTRFEFHR | ANNUAL REPORT 2009

41



Notes to the Financial Statements

BAIEERAR MY RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

In 2009, the Group adopted HK(IFRIC) -
Interpretation 11 “HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury
Share Transactions” issued by the HKICPA which is
relevant to the Group’s operations. The adoption of
this interpretation did not have significant effect on
the results and financial position or changes in the
accounting policies of the Group.

The following new or revised standards and
amendments to existing standards have been
published and are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1st
January 2009 or later periods, relevant to the Group
and have not been early adopted:

Effective for the year ending 31st March 2010:

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 1 (Amendment)
HKAS 16 (Amendment)
HKAS 19 (Amendment)
HKAS 23 (Amendment)
HKAS 27 (Amendment)
HKAS 31 (Amendment)
HKAS 36 (Amendment)
HKAS 38 (Amendment)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8

Presentation of Financial
Statements
Borrowing Costs

Presentation of Financial
Statements

Property, Plant and Equipment

Employee Benefits

Borrowing Costs

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

Interests in Joint Ventures

Impairment of Assets

Intangible Assets

Share-based Payment Vesting

Conditions and Cancellation
Operating Segments

47) SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =fIEEARAF
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Effective for the year ending 31st March 2011:

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combination

Non-current Assets Held for Sale

and Discontinued Operations

HKFRS 5 (Amendment)

The Group is assessing the impact of these new or
revised standards and amendments. The adoption
of these new or revised standards and amendments
does not have significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements except for certain changes
in presentation and disclosures, including the
presentation of the statement of comprehensive
income, disclosures of operating segment and
enhanced disclosures about fair value measurement
and liquidity risk.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries made up to 31st March.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BAIEERAR MY RE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable
to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of
the extent of any minority interest. The excess of
the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary in the consolidated
financial statements to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment loss (note 2.6). The results of
subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and
operations engaged in providing products or
services that are subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of other business segments.
A geographical segment is engaged in providing
products or services within a particular economic
environment that are subject to risks and returns
that are different from those of segments operating
in other economic environments.

Foreign currency translation

(a)  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollar which is
the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BAIEERAR MY RE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

= assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing exchange rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates; and

— all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

2.5 Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the asset will
flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHBEME(£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.5 Plant and equipment (Continued) 2.5 REREME)

Depreciation of both owned and leased plant
and equipment is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their costs to their residual
values over the estimated useful lives, as follows:

Machinery and equipment 10-15 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Vessel 10 years

When a vessel is acquired, the costs of major
components which are usually replaced or
renewed at the next dry-docking are identified and
depreciated over the period to the next estimated
dry-docking date. Costs incurred on subsequent
dry-docking of a vessel are capitalised and
depreciated over the period to the next estimated
dry-docking date.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date. The carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if
the carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BAIEERAR MY RE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value of an
asset less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Leased assets

The Group leases certain plant and equipment.
Leases of plant and equipment where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership,
are classified as finance leases. Finance leases
are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased plant and
equipment and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other short-term and
other long-term payables. The interest element
of the finance cost is charged to the income
statement over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The plant
and equipment acquired under finance leases is
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the
asset and the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtors,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that the
trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
assets is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the income statement within administrative
expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account
for trade receivable. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against
administrative expenses in the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories comprise machinery and equipments,
bunkers on board of vessels, lubricating oil and
marine products and are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value
of machinery is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses. Bunkers will be used for the
operation of the vessel, therefore the bunkers are
not written down to net realisable value when the
market price falls below cost if the overall shipping
activity is expected to be profitable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BAIEERAR MY RE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Contracting work-in-progress

Contracting work-in-progress is valued at cost
plus estimated attributable profits, less foreseeable
losses and progress payments received and
receivable. Cost comprises direct materials, labour
and overhead expenses incurred.

Revenue from contracting work is recognised based
on the stage of completion of the contracts. The
stage of completion of a contract is measured by
reference to the gross billing value of contracting
work to date as compared to the total contract
sum receivable under the contract, or the total
costs attributable to work performed to date as
compared to the estimated total contract costs,
whichever is the lower. When it is probable that
total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the foreseeable loss is recognised as
an expense immediately. Profits calculated in this
manner are transferred from gross profit to deferred
income on the balance sheet and is released to the
income statement in accordance with the stage of
completion of the contracts when the outcome of
the relevant contract can be measured reliably.

The aggregate of the costs incurred and the profit/
loss recognised on each contract is compared
against the progress billings up to the year end.
Where costs incurred and recognised profits
(less recognised losses) exceed progress billings,
the balance is shown as due from customers
for contract works under current assets. Where
progress billings exceed costs incurred plus
recognised profits (less recognised losses), the
balance is shown as due to customers for contract
works under current liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturity of
three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within short-term borrowings
in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the balance sheet date.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.
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BAIEERAR MY RE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14

2.15

Provisions (Continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.

Taxation

The current taxation charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15

2.16

Taxation (Continued)

However, the deferred taxation is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred taxation is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
taxation asset is realised or the deferred taxation
liability is settled.

Deferred taxation assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale of
goods and services in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities. The Group recognises revenue
when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria
have been met. Revenue is shown net of sales tax,
returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group.
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BAIEERAR MY RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracting work is recognised based
on the stage of completion of the contracts as
detailed in note 2.10 above.

Revenue from voyage chartering of vessel are
recognised on a percentage of completion basis.

Sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered to customers and the title has passed.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

2.17 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leaves are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(b)  Retirement scheme obligations

A Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) has been set up for all
employees of the Group in accordance with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance. Under the rules of the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees
are required to make contributions to the
MPF scheme at 5% of the employees’ gross
earning with a ceiling of HK$1,000 per month.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(®)

()

Retirement scheme obligations (Continued)

Contributions to the MPF scheme are
expensed as incurred and the assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as
an expense. The total amount to be expensed
over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options
granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets). Non-
market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest. At each balance
date, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest. It
recognises the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the income statement with
a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(@)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group
before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Group recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to either:
terminating the employment of current
employees according to a detailed formal plan
without possibility of withdrawal; or providing
termination benefits as a result of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Benefits falling due more than twelve months
after balance sheet date are discounted to
present value.

2.18 Operating leases

2.19

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks

and rewards of ownership are retained by the

lessors are classified as operating leases. Payments

made under operating leases, net of any incentives

received from the lessors are charged to the income

statement on a straight-line basis over the period of

the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution is recognised as a liability

in the financial period in which the dividends are

approved by the shareholders or directors, as
appropriate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable
that outflow of economic resources will be required
or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to liquidity risk,
credit risk, interest rate risk and foreign exchange
risk. The overall risk management programme of
the Group focuses on the unpredictability of the
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the financial performance of the
Group.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of
credit facilities from banks and directors
of the Company. The Group also regularly
monitors its compliance with the covenants
as stipulated in the bank loan agreements.
The Group aims to finance its operations with
its own capital and earnings and borrowings
or credit facilities utilised during the year.
Management considers that the Group does
not have any significant liquidity risk as there
were bank deposits of HK$65,204,000 (2008:
HK$39,112,000) pledged as collateral for
the borrowings as at 31st March 2009 and
management believes that the Group could
refinance its existing banking facilities and will
have sufficient financial resources to satisfy its
working capital requirements.

The table analyses the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

Group

At 31st March 2009 RZZETNF
=ZA=+—H
Trade payables &1 BR 3K
Accruals and other payables ~ [EitE B R EH
(excluding advance FE 13578
from customer) (TBEEFBR)

Amounts due to related e B &R A 3K IR

companies
Amounts due to directors ENEEHRE
Borrowings BE

At 31st March 2008 RZZESENEF

=A=+—H
Trade payables & 1 BR 3K
Accruals and other payables ~ [EitE B R E M

JE RT3 IE
Amounts due to related [ETERE R AR
companies

Amounts due to directors [ENEZHIE
Borrowings B8

B ISR AR B AL

3 MEBERBRERE)

31 MBEBERE)
(@ wBHELEE(E)
g

Less than Between 1 Between 2
1 year and 2 years and 5 years
DPRE 122F 2Z5F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FTAET TAT
11,112 - -
4,669 = =
1568 = =
14,375 - -
76,136 8,620 4,148
106,450 8,620 4,148
11,378 - -
4,395 = =
1568 - -
12,659 = =
92,048 5,424 4,365
120,638 5,424 4,365
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

Company
At 31st March 2009 RZZETNF
=A=t+—8
Accruals and other payables ~ EitE R K&
H i e 15 5108
Amounts due to related pl B NG
companies
Amounts due to directors ENEEHE
Financial guarantees for BTHBRARZ
subsidiaries B R
At 31st March 2008 RZTZT)N\F
=RA=+—H
Accruals and other payables ~ EEtER K
H {15 50E
Amounts due to related e BE R R HRIE
companies
Amounts due to directors ERHEEZRE
Financial guarantees for BETHBARIZ
subsidiaries B TS IR

(b)  Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation
to its cash and bank balances, trade and
retention receivables, deposits and other
receivables. The Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk is the carrying amounts of these
financial assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

®)

()

(@)

Credit risk (Continued)

To manage this risk, management has
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, management reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivable to ensure that adequate impairment
provision is made for the irrecoverable
amounts.

The credit risk on deposits with bank is limited
because deposits are in banks with sound
credit ratings.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as
cash and bank balances, other deposits and
borrowings are carried at variable rates. It is
the Group’s policy to maintain its borrowings
subject to floating rates, and accordingly, the
Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

At the balance sheet date, if interest rates
had been increased or decreased by 100
basis-point and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s and Company’s profit
for the year ended 31st March 2009 would
increase or decrease HK$75,000 (2008:
decrease or increase HK$353,000) and would
increase or decrease HK$366,000 (2008:
HK$343,000) respectively.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is primarily exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from US dollar. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities.
The foreign exchange risk exposure is not
significant to the Group as Hong Kong dollar is
pegged with US dollar under the existing Hong
Kong economic environment.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

MBEBRER (&)

3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 BARARBRER
AEBEBEAZ BERIRE
REBEBELE 266N 1
i /% % 3R 7 2R 1= R o

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity,
borrowings and amounts due to directors. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders and sell assets to reduce borrowings.
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
total debt to equity ratio and its compliance with
the loan covenants. The total debt to equity ratio is
calculated as net borrowings divided by total equity.
The total debt to equity ratios at 31st March 2009

were as follows:

Total borrowings and
amounts due to directors
Less: cash and bank
balances — unrestricted
and restricted

Net borrowings

Total equity

Net borrowings to equity ratio
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2009 2008
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HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
100,292 110,114
(89,994) (52,571)
10,298 57,543
189,414 179,230
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying amount of the financial assets of the
Group, including cash and bank balances, trade
and retention receivables and other receivables;
and financial liabilities including trade and retention
payables, accruals and other payables, amounts
due to related companies and directors and
borrowings approximate their fair values, which are
either due to their short-term maturities or subject to
floating rates.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

3

4

B ISR AR B AL

BEERERE (&)
3.3 AFEHE

AEEZEREERBRERER
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BARSER AR MY RE

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Estimated useful lives and residual values of plant
and equipment

Management estimates useful lives of the plant
and equipment by reference to the Group’s
business model, its assets management policy, the
industry practice, expected usage of the assets,
expected repair and maintenance, the technical
or commercial obsolescence arising from changes
or improvements in the market. Management
determines the estimated residual value for its
vessel based on the current scrap values of steels
in an active market at each measurement date
since management decides to dispose of the fully
depreciated vessel as scrap steels. Residual values
of machinery and equipment are determined based
on prevailing market values for equivalent aged
assets taking into account the condition of the
relevant assets and other economic considerations.
Depreciation expense would be significantly affected
by the useful lives and residual values of the plant
and equipment as estimated by management.

Estimated impairment of plant and equipment

The Group’s major operating assets represent
machinery and equipment and vessel. Management
performs review for impairment of the machinery
and equipment and vessel whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts of these assets may not be recoverable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Estimated impairment of plant and equipment
(Continued)

Management considered there was no impairment
indicator on the carrying value of vessel as it
consistently generates profit and cash inflow to the
Group. For impairment assessment of machinery
and equipment, the recoverable amounts of
machinery and equipment have been determined
based on fair value less costs to sell method.
The fair values of the assets were determined by
management based on market transactions at
the balance sheet date. Based on management’s
best estimates, there was no impairment loss for
machinery and equipment during the year.

Impairment of trade receivables

Management determines the provision for
impairment of trade receivables based on the
credit history of customers and the current market
condition by business segment. The final outcome
of the recoverability of these receivables will impact
the amount of impairment required.

Construction contracts

The Group reviews and revises the estimates of
contract revenue, contract costs, variation orders
and contract claims prepared for each construction
contract as the contract progresses. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in estimating the
total contract revenue, contract costs, variation
works and contract claims which may have impact
in terms of the profit taken.

4 EE
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BARSER AR MY RE

4

5

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e

Income taxation

The Group is engaged in the vessel chartering
business and may be subject to various taxes in
different jurisdictions depending on the route of
the vessel. The Group has not recognised any
taxation liability based on management’s judgement
that the vessel chartering operation undertaken
by the Group is not subject to the taxation of any
jurisdictions.

Contingent liabilities in respect of litigations and
claims

The Group has been engaged in a number of
litigations and claims as detailed in note 30.
Contingent liabilities arising from these litigations
and claims have been assessed by management
with reference to legal advice. Provisions on the
possible obligation, if appropriate, are made based
on management’s best estimates and judgements.

REVENUE

Turnover =R
Vessel chartering revenue AR & Uk A
Construction contract revenue EEAS WA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

Business segments — primary reporting format

The Group is organised into three main business
segments including foundation works, trading of
machinery and equipment and vessel chartering.

Revenue
Segment results
Unallocated expenses

Operating profit
Finance income
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Segment assets
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Capital expenditure
Depreciation

(Reversal of)/provision for
impairment of receivables

Impairment of deposits

L'ON
NEEE
ADERX
R
RERA
REKK

B B B AR
8

RNER A

NEBE
ANEEBE

Pl
I
e
cih

BEARRX

il

KR (E%) /RE
Bfe

BeWE

B ISR AR B AL

6 2EEHR
(@ EBoE-XEZ2HHA
AEENEBIEN /=K "

BREMBETR #HLSEME
5 UREMBEE -

Year ended and as at 31st March 2009

BE-EENE=A=+-ALEE
FR-ZZEENE=ZA=1+-H

Trading of

machinery

and

Foundation equipment Vessel

works BHK chartering Total
wEIR BNES EMEE @zt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER
4 - 112,606 112,610
(15,964) - 38,591 22,627
(12,719)
9,908
2,511
(4,253)
8,166
5,944
14,110
142,651 7,305 85,929 235,885
91,720
327,605
3,230 - 17,436 20,666
117,525
138,191
13,801 - 5111 18,912
6,350 - 5,053 11,403
(329) - 1,861 1,532
573 - - 573
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BARSER AR MY RE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 DEER (E)
(a) Business segments — primary reporting format () EBHE-EXTBEHAHA(E)
(Continued)

Year ended and as at 31st March 2008
BE_ZTZN\F=ZA=1+—HLFE
&ﬁtwj\i A=+—A

Trading of

machinery

and

Foundation equipment Vessel

works B R chartering Total
HETRE BHES EMHE @at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THAT TET TET TET
Revenue KA 9,069 - 102,804 111,873
Segment results NBEE 4,427 (475) 33,073 37,025
Unallocated expenses AAEAZ (13,080)
Operating profit A 23,945
Finance income BMERA 1,620
Finance costs N (5,672)
Profit before taxation BRES A& I 19,893
Taxation WA 2,079
Profit for the year AEERH 21,972
Segment assets AREE 140,972 7,305 88,573 236,850
Unallocated assets EF DELE E 89,923
Total assets EERE 326,773
Segment liabilities ABEE 3,161 = 11,105 14,266
Unallocated liabilities AOEAE 138,277
Total liabilities BiERE 147,543
Capital expenditure BEREY 264 = = 264
Depreciation e 9,226 = 2,775 12,001
Impairment of receivables  [EMFR(E 329 1,553 - 1,882
Write-down of inventories ~ 7F & #l# - 475 = 475
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Notes to the Financial Statements

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

Business segments — primary reporting format
(Continued)

Unallocated expenses represent corporate
expenses. Segment assets consist primarily of plant
and equipment, trade and retention receivables,
deposits, prepayments and other receivables,
inventories and amounts due from customers
for contract work. Unallocated assets comprise
deferred taxation assets, non-trade deposits, cash
and bank balances and tax recoverable. Segment
liabilities comprise trade and retention payables and
accruals and other payables. Unallocated liabilities
comprise amounts due to related companies,
amounts due to directors, borrowings, obligation
under finance leases, tax payable and deferred tax
liabilities. Capital expenditure comprises additions to
plant and equipment and vessel (note 15).

Geographical segments — secondary reporting
format

All assets and operations related to the construction
and trading of machinery and equipments
businesses of the Group are located in Hong
Kong. The vessel chartering business is carried
out worldwide and cannot be allocated into any
meaningful geographical segments. Accordingly,
geographical segment information is not presented.

B ISR AR B AL
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EEFTZBREEERSEM B
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FEUAREURTITRGHOEFR
RIB o RDMEERBRLETIE
BEE -FEBESHEe HRe KR
TREEARTKRERE - 53
BEEEMNERERERKRE
& AREFERREMER
B RO ABIEENBEE
NRIFIE - BNESHIE - &
B BEMEOER  ENTHIE
RIEERIBBE - EARZIE
NERBRSIV REM (K
15) o

e E-RE2H/RAR

B AR B 2 S R e 25
MEBEZEBEZMBEERKESE
BURER -EMEEXREE
2R ReEDEEERMAER
BB OE At WEE
2R DEER -

“ZTRFEFHR | ANNUAL REPORT 2009

69



70

Notes to the Financial Statements

BARSER AR MY RE

7 OTHER INCOME

Gain on disposal of plant
and equipment
Sundries

8 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Fuel costs
Staff costs, including directors’
emoluments
- wages and salaries
— contributions to retirement
scheme
Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation
— owned plant and equipment
- leased plant and equipment
Operating lease rentals in respect of
- office and storage premises
— directors’ quarters
Professional fees
Impairment of receivables
Impairment of deposits
Write-down of inventories to net
realisable values
Repair and maintenance
Construction contracts costs
Vessel management fee
Others

Total cost of sales and
administrative expenses
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& R Rt 2 as

H it

ST

BIXA B

EEHe
—TER¥E
—RIREH B

ZHMM 2
e
- BERBLRENT
—HERBREM
KemElrE
- MRERREDE
—EFEE
EXEH
FE SRR R (B
RERE
WoRTF & = 7] #3558

e R RE
BEA B
fMERER
Hity

HE R RATH
ERER

H g A

2009 2008
—EERAE ZET)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET THET
2,922 20,959
17 224
2,939 21,183

BEMEES X
2009 2008
—BENF —ETN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THET
41,681 47,411
8,564 8,954
249 280
905 905
10,710 10,982
693 1,019
1,753 1,627
1,896 1,896
5,272 3,580
1,532 1,882
573 =
- 475
6,626 4,770
48 4,424
7,929 5,048
17,210 15,858
105,641 109,111
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 9

Finance income
Interest income on bank
deposits
Interest income on other
deposits
Others

Finance costs
Interest expense on
borrowings wholly repayable
within five years:
— bank loans and overdrafts
— loan from a director
— other loan
— finance leases

Finance costs, net

TAXATION

BEWA
RITFERZFBHA

H Tz FL B KA

HAt

BB KA

BREFAZREE
ZERZNEBFRX
—RITEFREX
—EEEX
—HMER
-MEHE

BEMA - FER

10

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2008: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit

for the year.

Hong Kong profits tax
Current taxation
Deferred taxation (note 24)

BENEH
BIER M IR
EIERIA (M 5E24)

B ISR AR B AL

mE WA KA
2009 2008
—EBAE —TINF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
640 1,620
1,831 -
40 -
2,511 1,620
3,529 4,176
- 60
- 331
724 1,105
4,253 5,672
1,742 4,052

BiE

EBFNEHERANFE LT ERT
SHAIR16.5% (ZEE)\FE :17.5%)
TR B -

2009 2008
—BBAE —TTN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

50 759

(5,994) (2,838)
(5,944) (2,079)
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BARSER AR MY RE

10 TAXATION (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate

10 FHIE (&)

7N 52 (B BR 31 A s A 5t B 2 IR
RATAVEAEZERVRER

in Hong Kong as follows:

Profit before taxation

Calculated at tax rate of
16.5% (2008: 17.5%)
Income not subject to taxation

BR Bt Al g 7

BT E16.5%TH
ZTTN\EF 17.5%)

Expenses not deductible for DA IR 2 =2
taxation purposes

Tax losses not recognised RERRZ BB EE

Reversal of previously recognised @F FEER ZIEIL
deferred tax assets i I8 & EE # [)

Utilisation of previously FRBEFERER
unrecognised tax losses Z T E R

Effect of decrease in tax rate METHZZE

Others HAh

Taxation credit FriStiE &
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2009 2008
—BBAE —TTN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
8,166 19,893
1,347 3,481

(18,982) (20,168)
12,657 13,397

253 430

- 856

- (25)

(1,219) -

- (50)

(5,944) (2,079)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

DIVIDEND

Proposed final dividend of HK0.1 ~ EZZKHARE TR L B
cent (2008: HK0.13 cent) 0B (ZZEENE :
per ordinary share 0.13% 1)

At a meeting held on 21st July 2009, the directors
proposed a final dividend of HKO.1 cent per ordinary
share. This proposed dividend is not reflected as a
dividend payable in the financial statements, but will be
reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the
year ending 31st March 2010 upon the approval by the
shareholders.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit attributable to shareholders A% E& f& 15 i A
KREFE

T 15 &1
‘}gﬁﬁfﬁf%LJﬂﬁ
— BB A% A

Weighted average number of il ek
ordinary shares for the year

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
shares — share options za

Weighted average number of STEEREESAN

ordinary shares for calculation i AR AN 39 &
of diluted earnings per share
Basic earnings per share FRERZF
Diluted earnings per share FkEERT

11

12

B ISR AR B AL

i3}
2009 2008
—gTAE —TENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT T
3,020 3,926

RZZBZNFELA+—BRITZ
Exggal BEERRRERE
FAR0FEAL o 1tk R K H i B A Bt
BHRDINREMEE  MERK
RUEBBR EFREE-_FT—F
FZA=t—"BLEFERBRENZ
DEAR -

BRAN
2009 2008
— s —TE)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
14,110 21,972

3,020,000,000 3,018,387,978

- 4,124,859

3,020,000,000 3,022,512,837

HKO0.467 cent HKO0.728 cent

HKO0.467 cent HKO0.727 cent
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BARSER AR MY RE

12

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of shares in issue during
the year. In determining the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue, sub-division of shares (note 21(i))
was deemed to be in effect since 1st April 2007.

For the year ended 31st March 2008, the diluted earnings
per share was calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary share outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares from
share options. Adjustments was made to determine
the number of shares that could have been acquired
at fair value (according to the average annual market
share price of the shares of the Company) based on the
monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
the outstanding share options. The number of shares
calculated above was compared with the number of
shares that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options. For the year ended 31st
March 2009, there was no adjustment on the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding as there
was no outstanding share options for the year.
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13 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND HIGHEST

PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a)

Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

Year ended 31st March 2009

Name of director

Exps

Mr. Lau Chun Ming

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok

Mr. Lau Chun Ka

Ms. Leung Lai So

Mr. Hsu Kam Yee, Simon

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong
(note 33 (al(ii)

Mr. Chiu Kam Kun, Eric
(note 33 (a)(ii))

Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick

Mr. Chan Wai Dune

Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

Ei bt
ZIREIL 4
SRR EE
REHIT
TRELE
REXEE
(F7E33 (a)ii)
iz ot
(B33 (a)(i)
TEREL
FH2HE
RiEmEE

13 EERBEHFAIHE

o}

@ BEERSREBEAESHMH

BE-ZZEAF=HA=+—H

Employer’s

contribution

to pension

Directors’ scheme
Fees quarters Rk EZ Total
we BEREE B4 @zt
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THER TERT THER TERT
624 576 3 1,203
684 516 12 1,212
684 516 12 1,212
312 288 12 612
1,200 - 60 1,260
240 - - 240
240 - - 240
240 - - 240
4,224 1,896 99 6,219
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BARSERAR MY RE

13 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND HIGHEST 13 EERESHFALIEHE (&)
PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

i

(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments @ EZENSREBRABEFHME)
(Continued)
Year ended 31st March 2008 BHE_ZZ\F=HA=+—H
Employer’s
contribution
to pension
Directors’ scheme
Name of director Fees quarters iR EZ Total
EEfA e e EEHR @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TR THAT TR

Mr. Lau Chun Ming 2R A 624 576 12 1,212
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok ZRE A 684 516 12 1,212
Mr. Lau Chun Ka BImRR £ 684 516 12 1,212
Ms. Leung Lai So 2BHIL 312 288 12 612
Mr. Hsu Kam Yee, Simon SHELE 1,200 - 60 1,260
Mr. Chan Sun Kwong BREXLTE - - - =
Mr. Chiu Kam Kun, Eric ki et - - - -
Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen TlEREL 240 - - 240
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick ~ T2 %% 240 - - 240
Mr. Chan Wai Dune s 215 - - 215

4,199 1,896 108 6,203
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13 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

14

(a)

Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments
(Continued)

No directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year (2008: Nil). Fees paid to
independent non-executive directors during the year
amounted to HK$720,000 (2008: HK$695,000).

During the year, no emoluments were paid to any
of the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office (2008: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals were all directors

(2008: five), details of whose emoluments are
included in note (a) above.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Profit for the year is dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company to the extent of HK$6,988,000 (2008:
HK$10,423,000).

B ISR AR B AL

13 EERESFALHE (&)

14

EENSREBABEHM(E)

ajn

RER ESHERESRE
MELAME (ZZZT)N\F
T) FAZNBIFEHTE
£ 2 #HE A720,0008 T (=F
= )\ £F : 695,000/ 7T ) °

RER - LEFAERNES A
EAME  EREEEMARK
HEMARE B S EREE
BAEE(CZEENF:E) -

;AL

ot

&R

TEEeHFALEEERES
—ZTNF A7) - AR
EAIER LXK @B E -

REEZRF

KRB 7SRk R Z A FE i
7+ #16,988,000/8 7L (Z T ZT )\ F :
10,423,0005% 7T) °
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BARSER AR MY RE

15 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

At 1st April 2007
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31st March 2008
Opening net book amount
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation

Closing net book amount

At 31st March 2008
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31st March 2009
Opening net book amount
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation

Closing net book amount

At 31st March 2009
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

15 HRERS=H
KE
Machinery  Furniture
and and
equipment fixtures Motor
B KE  vehicles Vessel Total
R## REE RE i @it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TET TER TER FATL FATL
RZZE+ENA—A
KA 257,067 1,180 4,811 82,750 345,808
2EME (115,351) (810) (2,966) (6,021)  (125,148)
EEFE 141,716 370 1,845 76,729 220,660
HE-ZZ\F=RA=1-BItFE
HAEREFE 141,716 370 1,845 76,729 220,660
ANE - 264 = = 264
HE (11,940) - - - (11,940)
& (8,645) (169) (412) (2,775) (12,001)
HRERSE 121,131 465 1,433 73,954 196,983
R-BENF=A=1-H
A 237,001 1,444 4,689 82,750 305,884
2FME (115,870) (979) (3,256) (8,796)  (128,901)
EEFE 121,131 465 1,433 73,954 196,983
BE_ETNE=R=t-HILEE
HOEREE 121,131 465 1,433 73,954 196,983
NE 12,913 280 608 5,111 18,912
HE (1,446) (115) = (436) (1,997)
il (5,801) (138) (411) (5,053)  (11,4093)
HREREE 126,797 492 1,630 73,576 202,495
R-EENE=A=1—H
KA 247361 1,508 5,297 87,018 341,184
2EME (120,564) (1,016) (3,667) (13,442)  (138,689)
REFE 126,797 492 1,630 73576 202,495
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B ISR AR B AL

15 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15 RERBEM(E)

The machinery and equipment are held by the Group REB 2 WM RBMRFEEL

for its on-going foundation construction business. At EHEBEER RN NF=

31st March 2009, net book amounts of machinery A=+—H &Rt EHEE#m

and equipment held under finance leases and REMzEBFERASEZIER

pledged for bank loans amounted to HK$29,827,000 My R m 2 BREFED A

(2008: HK$17,515,000) and HK$5,572,000 (2008: /429,827,000 T (Z 2T )\ F :

HK$1,412,000) (note 28(a)(ii), respectively. 17,515,000/ 7T) K&5,572,000/7% 7T
ZZTT\F :1,412,0007% 7T ) (FI 5
28(a)(i) °

Company ¥ NN

At beginning of the year
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31st March
Opening net book amount
Depreciation

Closing net book amount

At end of the year
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Furniture and fixtures

REAREE
2009 2008
—EBBAE —ZEEEN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&ET
R 1)
X 7S 27 27
R2FHE (27) (27)
R FE - -
HE=ZA=1+—HILEE
B AR MR (B - =
e - =
HRER M F(E - =
RER
BN 27 27
R E (27) (27)
R FE - -
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BARSER AR MY RE

16 SUBSIDIARIES 16 KELQF

2009 2008

—EEhRE ZZTTN\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET T T

Unlisted shares, at cost JEEME G A AE 117,567 117,567

Amount due from a subsidiary NI E Q] 6,764 4,753

Less: Impairment of receivables  Ji : Ji& U R IE R (& (4,165) (4,347)

2,599 406

Detalls of principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34. FENB AR R 5E34 ©

The amounts receivable are unsecured, bearing interests JE e AERT BRESRER
at Hong Kong prime rate and have no fixed terms B 5t B R I £ B E R SR - 7%

of repayment. The carrying amounts of the balances EEBZEEEEEQFERS °

approximate their fair values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables JiE U BR 3R
— Third parties =EB=7
— A related party

Retention receivables

R

Less: Impairment

The Group’s credit terms for its vessel chartering and
construction business are individually negotiated with
its trade customers. For voyage chartering, freight is
normally paid prior to discharging of cargoes. Trade and
retention receivables in respect of contracting business
are settled in accordance with the terms of respective

contracts.

At 31st March 2009, the ageing analysis of the trade and

retention receivables was as follows:

0 to 90 days 0£90H
181 to 365 days 181 H £365H
More than one year —F P E

— BBAL

FE U B U AR R &

B ISR AR B RE

17 BUERREBURES

2009 2008
—BEAE —TEN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
16,381 15,195

40 1,044

16,421 16,239
1,411 1,570
17,832 17,809
(12,364) (10,832)
5,468 6,977

AEEMPEEREZETREREELR
EEEGFEENEEREZEFE
BeomBEEMMEmE BB KR
EMHEA N - BRAEEXKZ
FEMBR AR & R M B R B & YR IR

e s
EANGTEE -

RZZEZNF=A=+—H" KK
RS BRWRE & 2 FRE DA

2009 2008
—ERhE _—TETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
4,017 2,661

- 1,861

13,815 13,287
17,832 17,809
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BAIEERAR MY RE

17 TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES 17 EWRIZEEBKRE S (£Z)

(Continued)

At 31st March 2009, trade receivables of HK$4,057,000
(2008: HK$5,566,000) were past due but not impaired.
The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as

follows:

0 to 90 days 0Z90H

181 to 365 days 181H £365H
More than one year —FLE

At 31st March 2009, retention receivables of
HK$1,411,000 (2008: HK$1,411,000) were not yet due
and were not impaired.

As at 31st March 2009, HK$12,364,000 of the trade
receivables (2008: HK$10,832,000) were impaired and
fully provided. The ageing of such receivables are as
follows:

More than one year —F LA E

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =fIEEARAF

R_ZEZTAF=A=+—8" EK
8RB 4,057,000 T (ZZEZ )N\
% : 5,566,000/ 7t) E 8 238 R R
B> Z5RBERZRRAITAT

2009 2008
—EBEEAE Z—ZTTN\HF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHET T T
4,017 2,661

- 1,861

40 1,044

4,057 5,566

R_ZTEENF=ZA=+—8"  EK
U R 41,411,000 T (ZEZ
J\EE © 1,411,000/ 7T ) WAREER « 7R
ERE -

R-ZEZNF=ZA=1+—H" EK
BRI A 812,364,000/ 7T (Z T T )\
% 10,832,000/ 7T) B E k25
Bl ZERWERZERR T
T -

2009 2008
—BBhE —BTN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT T
12,364 10,832




(Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B RE

17 TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade and

retention receivables are as follows:

At beginning of the year
Provision for impairment

of receivables
Bad debt written off

Reversal of provision for
impairment of receivables

At end of the year

RE
JFE M5 R R 1B 1 £

R IR AR 36
P Uit B SRORR (B 188 s o 1m0 %

RER

The carrying amounts of trade and retention receivables

are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar
United States dollar

BT
e

The creation and release of provision for impaired

receivables have been included in administrative

expenses in the income statement. Amounts charged to

the provision account are generally written off when there

is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

17

FEWIRAR R BURE ()

R R R R IRE R E R 2
EHIT :
2009 2008
—®BhE —TTN\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
T THT
10,832 13,810
1,861 1,882
- (4,860)
(329) =
12,364 10,832
P X R R R B o 2 BT LA
5 5 H 5
2009 2008
—EThE —BIN\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FiH FHT
1,451 4,875
4,017 2,102
5,468 6,977

FEUBR TR E R BB Mk E & &
BRERSERTHREAX "R - 28
H AW B B O R & B 5t A BB IR
BZ2oBBE T AME -
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BAIEERAR MY RE

18

19

INVENTORIES 18 #FE&
2009 2008
—EBEEAE —ZTTNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBx T T
Machinery and equipment He Ak S 28 1 9,138 9,138
Bunkers on board M ERE AR 5,749 9,583
14,887 18,721
CONTRACTING WORK-IN-PROGRESS 19 HEEIREZEN
2009 2008
—EBEEAE —ZTTNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FB T T T
Contract costs incurred plus S FTE A A AR
attributable profits less JE A& 5 AR A) T8 R B 18
foreseeable losses to date 67,652 67,652
Progress billings to date 25 2 EE MR (57,887) (57,887)
Amount due from customer JEU TIEE 4
for contract work BPEHIE 9,765 9,765
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B ISR AR B RE

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 20 REeRBITEE
Group Company
r£H b N
2009 2008 2009 2008

—RRNE ZFT/\F ZBENF —TT)N\RF
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TR THAT TR THAT

Cash at bank and in hand RITREFR 2 24,773 12,975 864 808
Short-term bank deposits R EIRITE R 65,221 39,596 40,221 39,596
89,994 52,571 41,085 40,404
Less: Cash and bank balances & : B& MRITERF
- restricted (note 28(a)(i)) — B Rl (K E28(a)()) (65,204) (39,112) (40,204) (39,112)
Cash and bank balances ReRBTER
— unrestricted — R 24,790 18,459 881 1,292
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits HHERETERZEEF X 50972
was 0.97% (2008: 1.59%); these deposits have an —EENF A159E)  REBFRZ
average maturity of 162 days (2008: 61 days). FHREHEAE162K (Z BT )\ F :
61K) °
Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the NGRS REmERmMs  BHek
purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement: RNeZEEBBETYERIE:
Group
AEE
2009 2008
—EBEENE —ZBENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Cash and bank balances Be RIBTEE
— unrestricted — FEBR 24,790 13,459
Bank overdrafts (note 28) 175 < (Mi5E28) (44,972) (45,911)
(20,182) (32,452)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
g s e
20 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued) 20 RERBITERF(E)

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances are ReRBITEFZERHABNATIE

86

denominated in the following currencies: DI E -
Group Company
rEE P N/NE
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EERAE —ZEN\FE ZZEEAE —ZTITN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TEx FHT TERT FHT
Hong Kong dollar BT 67,142 42,052 41,085 40,404
United States dollar e 22,852 10,519 - -
89,994 52,571 41,085 40,404
21 SHARE CAPITAL 21 KR
Number of shares
i
Ordinary Ordinary Nominal
shares of shares of value
HK$0.1 each HK$0.01 each
BREEIET BREE01ET REE
HK$'000
TATL
Authorised: iyl
At 1st April 2007 RZZZtENA-H 1,000,000,000 - 100,000
Sub-division of shares (note (i) Binas (FE) (1,000,000,000) 10,000,000,000 -
At 31st March 2008 and 2009 RZZENER-_EFNF=A=1—H - 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issuedl and fully paid: BERTREAR :
At 1st April 2007 RZFZLENA—H 300,000,000 - 30,000
Exercise of share options {TieRERE ()
(note (i) 2,000,000 - 200
Sub-division of shares (note (i) Rivatk () (302,000,000) 3,020,000,000 -
At 31st March 2008 and 2009 RIFENERZEZINE=A=T—H - 3,020,000,000 30,200
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21 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(i)

(i

Sub-division of shares

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting on 10th December
2007, with effect from 11th December 2007, the
authorised and issued share capital of the Company
of every 1 ordinary share of HK$0.1 each were sub-
divided into 10 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

Share option scheme

Pursuant to a resolution of the sole shareholder
passed on 25th March 2003, the Share Option
Scheme was approved and adopted. On 28th May
2003, options to subscribe for 4,500,000 ordinary
shares of the Company were granted to directors.
The grantees were entitled to exercise their options
at a price of HK$0.69 per share at any time during
the period from 28th May 2004 to 27th May 2007.

During the year ended 31st March 2008, 2,000,000
share options were exercised at an exercise price
of HK$0.69 per share and all remaining 2,500,000
share options lapsed. There was no new share
option granted during the year ended 31st March
2009.

B ISR AR B RE

BE-ZTLF+=-ATHZ
REFRIAE L@R s @R
R ARREAERBETR
AP gREENS T2 LR
& B4 A108x & X E(E0.01
BLoEBERKR BT LF
+T-At+—HBEEM-

B st 8l

BER-ZTZT=F=A=+HA
HETBBZE—RFERER
BB AR RE AT B L IR AN o
R-_ZEE=FRA_-_+/\H"
BETEFAAHABARARA
4,500,0000% & 8 i% Ik 5 < B8
fRiE - AEABER_ZZTN
FRAAZ+NBEZZTZTLHF
FAZTERAEMEZ E AR
A EH%0.698 T 2 (BI& 1T &
RERR 4 -

REEZ_TZNF=A=1+—
HIEFE R 2,000,000 &
B 17 % (B0.6978 T 2 B8 R i 1
171+ BT A & $:2,500,0008%
BHRELN - REE-ZTZN
¢1H1+_H¢¢EW’W
R L R AR -
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BAIEERAR MY RE

22 RESERVES

At 1st April 2007

Issue of shares upon exercise

of share options
Dividend paid
Profit for the year

At 31st March 2008
Dividend paid
Profit for the year

At 31st March 2009

Representing:

At 31st March 2009
Reserves

2009 final dividend proposed

(note 11)

R-EZ+FWA—H
TR RER I TR

BERERS
ARER R

A&

RZEENE=A=1+—H

R

“ETNFEZERBRE
(PH=E11)

22 %
Group
rEE
Share Merger Retained

premium reserve earnings Total
R R E BbtRE REEF ok
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET TET FET
27,913 (12,974) 116,979 131,918
1,180 - - 1,180
- - (6,040) (6,040)
- - 21,972 21,972
29,093 (12,974) 132,911 149,030
- - (3,926) (3,926)
— — 14,110 14,110
29,093 (12,974) 143,095 159,214
29,093 (12,974) 140,075 156,194
- - 3,020 3,020
29,093 (12,974) 143,095 169,214

The Group’s merger reserve represents the difference

between the aggregation of the nominal value of the share

capital of the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value

of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange

thereof pursuant to the group reorganisation completed

on 28th March 2003.
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22 RESERVES (Continued)

B ISR AR B RE

22 fEE(E)

Company
¥ NG|
(Accumulated
losses)/
Share Contributed retained
premium surplus earnings Total
(REEE)
BOEE BHES KREEF @
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TAT TET TAT TAET
At 1st April 2007 RZFELFMHA—H 27,913 94,317 (1,192) 121,038
Issue of shares upon exercise  {TEEERRERF TR
of share options 1,180 - - 1,180
Dividend paid BERRE - - (6,040) (6,040)
Profit for the year (note 14) AEERM (KE14) - - 10,423 10,423
At 31st March 2008 RZZEZENF=A=1+—H 29,093 94,317 3,191 126,601
Dividend paid BERRE - - (3,926) (3,926)
Profit for the year (note 14) AEERM (HE14) - - 6,988 6,988
At 31st March 2009 RZZEZNEF=RA=+—H 29,093 94,317 6,253 129,663
Representing: -k
Reserves 4 29,093 94,317 3,233 126,643
2009 final dividend proposed ZETNFRERIRE
(note 11) Cizak) - - 3,020 3,020
29,093 94,317 6,253 129,663

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda (as amended)
and the Bye-Laws of the Company, the contributed
surplus is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company. Accordingly, the total distributable reserves
of the Company as at 31st March 2009 amounted to
HK$100,570,000 (2008: HK$97,508,000).

The Company’s contributed surplus represents
the difference between the net asset values of the
subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof
pursuant to the group reorganisation.

BIEBRERRDE (BERT) RA
NAElZ Al BEHARTIA] DK T
ARAAIRE Bt RZZEZENF
A=+ —BARFAIED IR EE
H# 5+ 4100,570,000/% 7T (ZZ2Z )\
£ : 97,508,000/ 7T) °

AR BEHABENASEEH
REWBINB LR FEEERAR
RAIRBEBRZEFEEMBRITZRN
E1E R Z5 -
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BAIEERAR MY RE

23 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Wholly repayable within five years
Bank loans, secured (note (a))
Obligations under finance

leases (note (b))

Less: Amounts due within one

year included under
current liabilities

Notes:

(@)

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =fIEEARAF

AFEAE
ﬁﬁ%%
MEMERE

B AR E
—FR

The Group’s bank loans are repayable as follows:

Within one year

In the second year
In the third to fifth years

S
Sisy

=% Fak:s

e
i

23

SBUE?
*ﬁ‘%fﬁ%ﬁﬁ(ﬁﬁuf( )
% (P #E(b))

BEETZ
BIEA R IR

Interest is charged on the balances at rates ranging from

5.76% to 6.8% (2008: 5.76%).

Details of sec

guarantee are disclosed in note 28(a).

urity and

RHARGE
Group
rEHE
2009 2008
—EEAE Z—ZEZENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
5,086 1,393
16,067 13,761
21,153 15,154
(8,890) (5,779)
12,263 9,375
&t -

aE B
vid
)
=

TERR N5 HEE

Group

£33
2009 2008
—EENF —EE)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FHET
1,680 466
1,700 494
1,706 433
5,086 1,393

AR5 7T6/E £6.8F (Z T T\ &F :

5.76[E) 2 &
5 72 A BT 5E28(a) °

EE R - B RIERZF
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B ISR AR B RE

23 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS (Continued) 23 RHEIBE (&)
Notes: (Continued) Kiat - (&)
(b)  Obligations under finance lease are payable within the b) ZERTHHEXNHRERER
following periods: %
Group
AEE
Present value Minimum payment
HIFE BNERE
2009 2008 2009 2008

ZEBAE —TENF ZBEAF —ZTTN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET FET THET

Within one year —F R 7,210 5,313 7,717 5,827
In the second year E_F 6,531 4,607 6,749 4,890
In the third to fifth years SF=Z=FRF 2,326 3,841 2,367 3,921
16,067 13,761 16,833 14,638
Finance charges Mi%E A (766) (877)
16,067 13,761
Interest is charged on the outstanding balances of finance BERERERERZRN F1EA
leases at rates ranging from 1 month HIBOR to 1.5% EARITRAEZFEZRERESR
below Hong Kong dollar prime rate. PR 5E 2 BEEFTR ©
(¢)  The carrying amount of long-term borrowings approximate ) EFRHEBEZREEBEAFS AT
their fair values and are denominated in Hong Kong dollar. BEfEE  WABTHE -
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BAIEERAR MY RE

24 DEFERRED TAXATION 24 EEFIE
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary FEENRBXBaEEINER =82
differences under the liability method using a taxation HE16.5% (ZZEZTN\F:17.5%) 1E
rate of 16.5% (2008: 17.5%). The movements on the net SEBE - BELEFIE (AR EAE
deferred taxation (liabilities)/assets are as follows: FEEFNT
Group Company
i 3L ¥ NG|
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EZEBANE ZZTN\E ZZBAEFE ZTT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER TET THER TET
At beginning of the year REF] (21,337) (24,175) 7 94
Recognised in the income R &P ER
statement 5,994 2,838 43 (23)
At end of the year RER (15,343) (21,337) 114 71
The movements in deferred taxation liabilities and assets FRNEEHRBEBELEESE (Kt
during the year, without taking into consideration the B —fEr iR ZEHREE) @
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are T
as follows:
Deferred taxation liabilities — Accelerated depreciation EIEFIEE G — R E R i
allowances
Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EEAFE ZZEENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTEx T T
At beginning of the year R E 7] (21,498) (25,125)
Recognised in the income AU S R R
statement 1,286 3,627
At end of the year RER (20,212) (21,498)
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24 DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred taxation assets — Tax losses

At beginning of the year N

Recognised in the income U e & R RER
statement

At end of the year RER

At beginning of the year NG

Recognised in the income U e & P RER
statement

At end of the year RER

Deferred taxation assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
taxation assets against current taxation liabilities and
when the deferred taxation relate to the same fiscal
authority. The following amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet.

B ISR AR B RE

24 EFEFIE (E)

EEHAEE-HABR

Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EEAFE Z—ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FAET
161 950
4,708 (789)
4,869 161
Company
KATE
2009 2008
—EEAE Z—ZTZENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FAT
71 94
43 (28)
114 71

B R FORBITR A S B B AR TR
BEHENANBAAGEERE  URE
ERES RFA—FEREENER
T EERAEEENEEERAR
BEEHEHE NI CBEEFAEE
EHEKR NEERBRAIK-
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BAIEERAR MY RE

24

25

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

EETTAE E
B IARE

Deferred taxation liabilities
Deferred taxation assets

Deferred taxation assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
As at 31st March 2009, the Group had unrecognised
temporary differences arising from unutilised tax losses
of HK$9,444,000 (2008: HK$7,913,000) to carry forward
against future taxable income. These tax losses have
not yet agreed with the tax authorities, but once agreed,
these tax losses have no expiry date.

TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES

Balances included retention payable of HK$42,000 (2008:
HK$113,000) which is denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
The ageing analysis of the remaining trade payables is as
follows:

24 EFEFIE (E)

Group

rEHE
2009 2008
—EEAE Z—ZEZENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
(15,599) (21,498)
256 161
(15,343) (21,337)

25

iR E T TR & B T R FE AR B TR S Al =
A i35 18 7R 2R FE =R A v A1 43R 1 BL PR
HEHRBBREER R_ZF
NE=ZA=1+—"H A&EBHKXH
AR IBEESI R 2 RERRT R E
£ 59,444,000 L (Z T Z )\ F ¢
7,913,000/ 7T) ' 2 E B E M
AR RRERRMA - L EH
HEBI ARERIEEEZE - E—
Kz R HIEBEBILREFER -

EAERRAERBRRES

FFARENERRBBARE R 2
NBRWRBEUABTIE €85
42,000/ 7t (ZEZF /A F : 113,000
BIT) o HRAE R R IR 2 4T 40
N

0 to 90 days 0Z90H

91 to 180 days 912180H
181 to 365 days 181£365H
More than one year —F Mk
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Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EEhE Z—ZTT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET THT
9,431 9,873
247 -
- 809
1,392 583
11,070 11,265




25

26

Notes to the Financial Statements

TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated
in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar BT
United States dollar E7T
Other currencies H b &

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

At 31st March 2009, the balance mainly comprised of
the advance received from a customer for chartering
its vessel of HK$6,361,000 (2008: Nil) and accrued
expenses.

The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar
United States dollar

all &l

M o

B ISR AR B RE

25 EARIRRBURES(E)

RN BRARA TG IE -

Group

rEE
2009 2008
—EEAFE ZZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHETT
1,508 1,678
9,111 9,288
451 299
11,070 11,265

26 EEAREMESRE

R-FEZENAF=ZA=1+—H " &KX
BRESBEEQRE—E2EPHAEM
2 A { F86,361,0008 L (Z 2
NFE ) REFER -

EEtER R EMENFIANATNIE
#olE

2009 2008
ZEThE —TENF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TER TAET

3,232,000 3,317,000
7,798,000 1,078,000

11,030,000 4,395,000
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BAIEERAR MY RE

27 AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES AND

28

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =fIEEARAF

DIRECTORS

Amounts due to related companies and directors are

unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. The

amounts are denominated in Hong Kong dollar and are

approximately their fair values.

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Bank overdrafts (note 20)
Short-term bank loans

Secured short-term bank
borrowings (note (a))

(@)  Banking facilities

R17E 2 (M17E20)
REHIRITE R

BEMERRITER
& & (Fif5E(a)

As at 31st March 2009, the Group’s banking
facilities totalling approximately HK$94,153,000
(2008: HK$100,148,000) were secured by the

following:

(i) Bank deposits of the Group amounting to
HK$65,204,000 (2008: bank deposits of the
Group and a related company amounting
to HK$39,112,000 and HK$25,000,000

respectively) (note 20);

(i) Certain machinery and equipment of the Group

(note 15);

27 BNBAEATARESEMRER

EBNEERARRETRELSER
B 2EREEEERY - ZFEX
BB TIME  YERF 2 RNFE
&

28 BEHER

(a)

Group
E3 .
2009 2008
—EENE —ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
44,972 45,911
19,792 36,390
64,764 82,301
RITEE
RZZEZENF =

A
B AEERTEELR

=t—
A

94,153,000 T (ZZEZ N

1

00,148,000/& ) @ A T~

bl AR A

(i)

(i

AR A RITERD
65,204,000/ 7T (= &
TNF AEE KR —H
BEARZRITERD
A £39,112,0007% 7t &
25,000,000/ 7t) (FY &
20) ;

KEFEE THEW =M
(Ffs%15) ¢
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B ISR AR B RE

28 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS (Continued) 28 BHER(E)
(@) Banking facilities (Continued) (@ RITEEE)
(i) Corporate guarantee given by the Company (i) ARAREMEHNER T
and two subsidiaries for an amount of T 4% it & 72,126,000
HK$72,126,000 (2008: HK$88,102,000) in BT (ZEZT )N\ F
aggregate; and 88,102,000/8 7T) Z ‘A &)
R Rk
(iv) Cross guarantee for HK$36,084,000 (2008: (v) ZKHE A E36,084,000
HK$50,000,000) among a number of BT (ZEZE )N\ E
subsidiaries. 50,000,000/ 7T) Z R X,
EiR
(b) The effective interest rates at the balance sheet b)) REEAZERMNERRS:
dates were:
2009 2008
HK$ uss$ HK$ US$
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 2.82% - 5.06% -
Bank loans RITER 2.66% 4.61% 4.56% 6.36%
(c) The carrying amount of short-term borrowings () RHSRTERZEmMEREAR
approximate their fair values and are denominated in FERE LA T E S E

the following currencies:

2009 2008

—EBEBAE Z—ZTTNE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET F&T

Hong Kong dollar S TT 60,972 74,700
United States dollar ETT 3,792 7,601
64,764 82,301
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BAREERAR MY RE

29

30

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The future aggregate minimum lease rental expenses in
respect of office and storage premises and directors’
quarters under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable in the following periods:

Within one year —F RN

In the second to fifth years FFEERF
inclusive (BEEEMSF)

LITIGATION

On 11th April 2007, an action was lodged against a
subsidiary of the Company, as owner of the vessel
m/v Asian Atlas, to claim for damages, indemnity
or contribution against the liability, loss, damage or
expenses suffered by a launchway-owner (the “Plaintiff”).
As a result of this claim, m/v Asian Atlas was arrested
and the Group had placed a deposit of US$4.5 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$35.1 million) with the
High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“HKSAR”) for its release. On 31st July 2008, the
Court of Appeal of the HKSAR dismissed the Plaintiff’s
application for appeal to the Court of Final Appeal and
the abovementioned US$4.5 million deposit together with
the interest earned were released to the Group on 16th
December 2008.

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =fI&£EARA T

29

30

KEREAR

BREBRAERREMEARESRR
EZTAEHEAEHEMARIAT
HEXNzARKERSERARE
s

2009 2008
ZEThE —TENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER THET
1,106 3,205

327 360

1,433 3,665

ny
oy

>

RZZEZLFOA+—H  AAF
— KB A 7] ({F BAsian AtlasE fis
MR HIRFREE KGR —BT
KBEHER AN ([RFAD) AL
GEREZEMNEMT BB BEX
X ELIBEERE RERZEXSD
o A RIBRE  Asian AtlasE M
B ANEEZESEERBN
4,500,000 7t (48 & $235,100,000
BIL) 2 RS AR R ZF
ENFLA=1+—H EBLFES
RIEEF A RRE LR E5F 2 &8
BoAEEVYER=-_ZEZTNF+=
A +75 B E Eii4,500,000% 7T 2
HEERFE o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31st March 2009, the Group and the Company had
no significant contingent liability in respect of litigations
arising in the normal course of its business. These
litigations include both claims against the Group and
counterclaims made by defendants of actions initiated
by the Group. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the ultimate liability under these proceedings,
if any, would not have a material impact on the financial
position of the Group and the Company.

31

B ISR AR B AL

HREE

RZZBBEAF=ZA=+—B %&
BEARBMEBEEBBERR
EEZHRALEBERERZEIARE
B tEFRERAAEERELZ
RE - URAKEEDRZ KEFR
HZREE -RARAEZRBER %
FHRBREEZEREREET 08§
TEHAEERARRZF BN
BREATE -
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32 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 32 GEREREME
(@) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash @ KEBMNHELEEBMSE,
generated from/(used in) operations (FTH) IR ez H R
2009 2008
—EERE Z—ZEZENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T
Operating profit £ T 9,908 23,945
Depreciation e 11,403 12,001
Gain on disposal of plant & R & B3 M M e
and equipment (2,922) (20,959)
Impairment of receivables FE W IR B 1,532 1,882
Impairment of deposits EERE 573 =
Write-down of inventories WREE - 475
Cash generated from RETEEESEHAE
operations before working KEEBEERE
capital changes 20,494 17,344
(Increase)/decrease in trade  JEUWBR X M5 IR E &
and retention receivables (3gm) m (23) 2,486
Decrease/(increase) in Ee  BENREREM
deposits, prepayments and FE W R IE R A (3 n)
other receivables 35,584 (35,621)
Decrease/(increase) FERL, (M)
in inventories 3,834 (8,779)
Decrease in contracting EEIEGHORD
work-in-progress - 3,415
(Decrease)/increase in trade  ENERZ KB KRE £
and retention payables CR ) /4N (266) 9,185
Increase/(decrease) in FE =T B A K H fth F& A~ 5RIE
accruals and other payables  #h1, (E4>) 6,635 (5,146)
Decrease in balances with B 388 N R AR
related companies - (335)
Increase in amounts due to &~ 22 == FRIR G AN
directors 1,716 10,244
Net cash generated from/ KBRS,/ (FTA)
(used in) operations ZIReFE 67,974 (7,207)
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32 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

Major non-cash transaction

The major non-cash transactions for the year
include (i) the inception of the finance lease
arrangement of HK$9,300,000 and (i) trade-in of an
used machinery of HK$3,500,000 for purchase of
machinery & equipment of HK$12,800,000 (2008:
Nil).

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

During the year, apart from those disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the following
significant transactions were carried with related
parties:

Paid and payable to related B REMTFHEBEZEA L

B ISR AR B AL

32 GEBETREHMR(E)

(b)

TEHRRERH
AEFZITBZHRAETRB T

REBRAFERNLAEE
12,800,000 T (ZZFEE )N\
F ) 2R R EEM )R] AL
9,300,000 L Z B EHE %
B - LA (i) = Y — 503,500,000
BT ZFHEs o

33 AEAEALIXRS

(a)

parties: FRIA

Rental expenses to related S FAEBEEARZES
companies (note (i) B R (B EEG))

Consultancy fee paid to SR FHEEARCEME
related companies CiEAD))
(note (i)

Interest paid to a director TRNTF—RESZZFHE

Notes:

(i) Rental expenses are paid to companies beneficially
owned by the directors of the Company based on
the agreements entered into between the parties
involved with reference to market rates of similar
properties.

(i) Consultancy fees were paid to companies in which
the directors, Mr. Chan Sun Kwong and Mr. Chiu
Kam Kun, Eric have beneficial interests in respect
of their services provided to the Group, and were
charged at monthly fees agreed by the parties
involved.

REA - BB BHREREMBETD
FIRBEES  AEELEERH
HEREETANTEARS

2009 2008
—EENE “TINF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHR FHRT
2,976 2,976
1,680 1,680

- 60

wiat -

(i

MeBRADIEBRRI KA L
2 2R A EY X TS RE
XNFARRIERERERLZA
HE

FLEHESRRIC A BRI T
EnBARR I ARRAEE

REZRENERE  XRE

W77 KR E 2 A& UWER
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BARSER AR MY RE

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33
(b) Key management compensation

The compensation of key management personnel
paid or payable by the Group in respect of the
year comprised of directors’ emoluments and
consultancy fees paid, totaling HK$7,899,000
(2008: HK$7,883,000).

34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 34

Listed below are the principal subsidiaries wholly-owned
by the Company.

Issued and fully paid
Name ordinary share capital
AR ERB ERTRBEEBERAE

Incorporated in Hong Kong, indirectly held
REBEMAVUEERE

FREALRS (&)
b)) EEEEABHRMH

AEEBRAFEENREGEZE
EBABZHRMNESZM S X E
% 1£7,899,0008 L (Z T T N\ F :
7,883,000/ 7T ) °

FTENBAA

TIRARR2ERAZTENE

AT

Principal activities
and place of operation

TERBEXBEY

Sam Woo Bore Pile Foundation Limited 10,000,000 shares of HK$1 each Foundation works in Hong Kong
ZRHEERAR 10,000,000 BREE AT ZRG HELR/FE

Sam Woo Construction & Engineering Limited 100,000 shares of HK$1 each

“HEREHBRAF 100,000 B EE 18T B in
Sam Woo Engineering Equipment Limited 500,000 shares of HK$1 each
=B AR AR 500,000/ BIREE1 T2 R 1D

Incorporated in Republic of Seychelles,
indirectly held
REZBATEF ATV EERE
Asian Atlas Limited 5,000 shares of US$1 each

5,000 SR EE1XT 2B

102 SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =fI£EARA T

Trading of used foundation works
related machinery and equipment
in Hong Kong

ZFHETEEREMN
85/%%

Leasing and trading of machinery
and equipment for foundation works
in Hong Kong
WETREHAMEER
85/&%

Shipping operation operated on
a worldwide basis
MBEE /25K
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B ISR AR B AL

35 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 35 BRAEKRDFA
The directors of the Company regarded Silver Bright KA 7] E Z 14 Silver Bright Holdings
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British Limited (R R BRE LA S MK 2
Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding company. NA)) BERAER AT o
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Five Year Financial Summary

LEHBERE

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
“EZTAF ZEBENF ZITTtF —ZITTRF —TTRF
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
FTET THAT FAT FAT FAT
Results ES
Revenue WA 112,610 111,873 122,601 104,803 62,498
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREATR T
(B18) 8,166 19,893 31,095 2,397 (29,646)
Income tax credit/(charge) IR
(Z i) 5,944 2,079 (1,922) 1,979 4,797
Profit/(loss) attributable AR SR PE A5 F,
to shareholders (B18) 14,110 21,972 29,173 4,376 (24,849)
Dividends % 2 3,020 3,926 6,040 - -
Assets and liabilities BEERARE
Total assets BERE 327,605 326,773 309,330 357,365 397,763
Total liabilities BEEE 138,191 147,543 147,412 224,620 269,394
Net assets EEFE 189,414 179,230 161,918 132,745 128,369

“EERFZEEDNREY  WRBRR
TENFH-RHRES T 2B REAM
1R 2 R -

Amounts of 2005 were restated to reflect the acquisition of a
subsidiary under common control which took place in 2006.
There is no impact on the amounts prior to 2005.
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